



RULE-MAKING ORDER PERMANENT RULE ONLY

CR-103P (August 2017) (Implements RCW 34.05.360)

CODE REVISER USE ONLY

OFFICE OF THE CODE REVISER
STATE OF WASHINGTON
FILED

DATE: September 07, 2017

TIME: 10:24 AM

WSR 17-19-008

Agency: Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife (WDFW) 17-229

Effective date of rule:

Permanent Rules

31 days after filing.

Other (specify) _____ (If less than 31 days after filing, a specific finding under RCW 34.05.380(3) is required and should be stated below)

Any other findings required by other provisions of law as precondition to adoption or effectiveness of rule?

Yes No If Yes, explain:

Purpose: Amends rules for coastal freshwater recreational salmon fishing and includes WAC 220-312-020, Freshwater exceptions to statewide rules - Coast. The freshwater recreational salmon fishing rules that are based on North of Falcon recommendations change from year to year to reflect current resource availability and to achieve conservation goals. Amendments to recreational salmon fishing rules are needed to implement the agreed-upon changes.

Citation of rules affected by this order:

New:

Repealed:

Amended: WAC 220-312-020

Suspended:

Statutory authority for adoption:

RCW 77.04.012, 77.04.013, 77.04.020, 77.04.055, and 77.12.047

Other authority: N/A

PERMANENT RULE (Including Expedited Rule Making)

Adopted under notice filed as WSR 17-15-062 on July 13, 2017 (date).

Describe any changes other than editing from proposed to adopted version: None

If a preliminary cost-benefit analysis was prepared under RCW 34.05.328, a final cost-benefit analysis is available by contacting:

Name:

Address:

Phone:

Fax:

TTY:

Email:

Web site:

Other:

**Note: If any category is left blank, it will be calculated as zero.
No descriptive text.**

**Count by whole WAC sections only, from the WAC number through the history note.
A section may be counted in more than one category.**

The number of sections adopted in order to comply with:

Federal statute:	New	___	Amended	___	Repealed	___
Federal rules or standards:	New	___	Amended	___	Repealed	___
Recently enacted state statutes:	New	___	Amended	___	Repealed	___

The number of sections adopted at the request of a nongovernmental entity:

New	___	Amended	___	Repealed	___
-----	-----	---------	-----	----------	-----

The number of sections adopted in the agency's own initiative:

New	___	Amended	<u>1</u>	Repealed	___
-----	-----	---------	----------	----------	-----

The number of sections adopted in order to clarify, streamline, or reform agency procedures:

New	___	Amended	___	Repealed	___
-----	-----	---------	-----	----------	-----

The number of sections adopted using:

Negotiated rule making:	New	___	Amended	___	Repealed	___
Pilot rule making:	New	___	Amended	___	Repealed	___
Other alternative rule making:	New	___	Amended	___	Repealed	___

Date adopted: September 5, 2017

Name: James Unsworth

Title: Director

Signature:



WAC 220-312-020 Freshwater exceptions to statewide rules—Coast.

- (1) **Aberdeen Lake (Grays Harbor County):**
(a) Open the fourth Saturday in April through October 31.
(b) Trout: No more than 2 trout over 15 inches in length may be retained.
- (2) **Alder Creek (Pacific County) (Naselle River tributary):**
(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
(b) Selective gear rules apply.
- (3) **Anderson Lake (Jefferson County):** (~~((a))~~) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.
~~((b) Open September 1 through October 31:
(i) Selective gear rules apply.
(ii) Trout: Catch and release only.))~~
- (4) **Bear Creek (Clallam County) (Bogachiel River tributary):**
(a) Open the first Saturday in June through (~~August~~) October 31.
(b) It is unlawful to use anything other than one barbless hook.
(c) It is unlawful to use bait.
(d) Trout:
(i) Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.
(ii) Release wild (unclipped) rainbow trout.
- (5) **Bear Creek (Clallam County) (Sol Duc River tributary):**
(a) Open the first Saturday in June through (~~August~~) October 31.
(b) It is unlawful to use anything other than one barbless hook.
(c) It is unlawful to use bait.
(d) Trout:
(i) Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.
(ii) Release wild (unclipped) rainbow trout.
- (6) **Bear River (Pacific County):**
(a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.
(b) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31.
(c) August 16 through November 30: Night closure in effect.
(i) From the mouth (Highway 101 Bridge) to Lime Quarry Road (approximately two river miles):
(A) August 16 through November 30:
(I) Barbless hooks required.
(II) Anti-snagging rule applies.
(B) Release all fish, except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.
(C) Salmon:
(I) Open September 1 through January 31.
(II) Limit 6 fish; only 4 may be adults.
(III) Release wild Chinook.
(ii) From the Lime Quarry Road upstream to the Longview Fiber Bridge:

- (A) Selective gear rules apply.
- (B) Release all fish, except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.
- (7) **Beaver Creek (Clallam County) (Sol Duc River tributary):**
 - (a) From the mouth upstream to Beaver Falls:
 - (i) Open the first Saturday in June through (~~August~~) October 31.
 - (ii) It is unlawful to use anything other than one barbless hook.
 - (iii) It is unlawful to use bait.
 - (iv) Trout:
 - (A) Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.
 - (B) Release wild (unclipped) rainbow trout.
 - (b) From Beaver Falls upstream to Beaver Lake: Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
 - (8) **Beaver Lake (Clallam County):**
 - (a) Selective gear rules apply.
 - (b) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.
 - (c) Trout: Maximum length 12 inches.
 - (9) **Big Creek (Grays Harbor County):**
 - (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
 - (b) Selective gear rules apply.
 - (10) **Big River (Clallam County), outside of Olympic National Park:**
 - (a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.
 - (b) Open the first Saturday in June through October 15, and January 1 through the last day of February.
 - (c) Selective gear rules apply.
 - (d) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.
 - (e) Trout:
 - (i) Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.
 - (ii) Release kokanee.
 - (11) **Black Creek (Grays Harbor County) (Wynoochee River tributary):**
 - (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
 - (b) Selective gear rules apply.
 - (12) **Black Lake (Pacific County):** Open the fourth Saturday in April through October 31.
 - (13) **Black River (Grays Harbor/Thurston counties):**
 - (a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.
 - (b) From the mouth to State Highway 12:
 - (i) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
 - (ii) Selective gear rules apply.
 - (iii) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.
 - (c) From Highway 12 to bridge on 128th Ave. S.W.:
 - (i) Anti-snagging rule applies.
 - (ii) Night closure in effect.
 - (iii) Barbless hooks are required.

(iv) Open for game fish the first Saturday in June through October 31; trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(v) Salmon: Open October 1 through December 31.

(A) Daily limit 6, of which 2 may be adults.

(B) Only one wild coho may be retained.

(C) Release Chinook and chum.

(d) From bridge on 128th Avenue S.W. (west of Littlerock) to Black Lake:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(ii) Selective gear rules apply.

(14) Bogachiel River (Clallam County):

(a) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(b) Release wild (unclipped) rainbow trout.

(c) It is unlawful to use anything other than one barbless hook.

(d) From the mouth to (~~mouth of Mill Creek~~) Highway 101 Bridge:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through (~~August 31 and November 16 through~~) April 30.

(ii) It is unlawful to use bait the first Saturday in June through (~~September 30~~) August 31 and February 16 through April 30.

(iii) Trout:

(A) From the first Saturday in June through (~~August 31 and November 16 through~~) March 31: Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(B) From April 1 through April 30: Trout minimum length 14 inches.

(C) November (~~16~~) 1 through last day in February: The limit may include one additional hatchery steelhead.

(iv) Salmon open July 1 through (~~August 31 and~~) November (~~16 through~~) 30:

(A) From July 1 through August 31:

(I) Limit 6; no more than 2 adults may be retained.

(II) Release wild adult Chinook and wild adult coho.

(B) From (~~November 16~~) September 1 through November 30: Limit (~~one; release wild coho.~~)

~~(e) From the mouth of Mill Creek to the Highway 101 Bridge:~~

~~(i) Open the first Saturday in June through August 31 and December 1 through April 30.~~

~~(ii) It is unlawful to use bait the first Saturday in June through September 30 and February 16 through April 30.~~

~~(iii) Trout:~~

~~(A) From the first Saturday in June through August 31 and December 1 through March 31: Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.~~

~~(B) From April 1 through April 30: Trout minimum length 14 inches.~~

~~(C) December 1 through last day in February: The limit may include one additional hatchery steelhead.~~

~~(iv) Salmon open July 1 through August 31.~~

~~(I) Limit 6; no more than 2 adults may be retained.~~

~~(II) Release wild adult Chinook and wild adult coho.~~

~~(f)) 3; no more than one adult may be retained.~~

(e) From Highway 101 Bridge to Olympic National Park boundary:

- (i) Open the first Saturday in June through (~~August 31 and December 1 through~~) April 30.
- (ii) It is unlawful to use bait.
- (iii) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length, as part of the limit.
- (15) Bone River (Pacific County):**
 - (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
 - (b) Selective gear rules apply.
- (16) Bunker Creek (Lewis County) (Chehalis River tributary):**
 - (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
 - (b) Selective gear rules apply.
- (17) Butte Creek (Pacific County) (Smith River tributary):**
 - (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
 - (b) Selective gear rules apply.
- (18) Calawah River (Clallam County):**
 - (a) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.
 - (b) Release wild (unclipped) rainbow trout.
 - (c) It is unlawful to use anything other than one barbless hook.
 - (d) From the mouth to the Highway 101 Bridge:
 - (i) Open the first Saturday in June through (~~August 31 and November 16 through~~) April 30.
 - (ii) It is unlawful to use bait the first Saturday in June through (~~September 30~~) August 31 and February 16 through April 30.
 - (iii) Trout:
 - (A) From the first Saturday in June through (~~August 31 and November 16 through~~) March 31: Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.
 - (B) From April 1 through April 30: Trout minimum length 14 inches.
 - (C) From November (~~16~~) 1 through the last day in February: The limit may include one additional hatchery steelhead.
 - (iv) Salmon open July 1 through (~~August 31 and November 16 through~~) November 30:
 - (A) From July 1 through August 31:
 - (I) Limit 6; only 2 adults may be retained.
 - (II) Release wild adult Chinook and wild adult coho.
 - (B) From (~~November 16~~) September 1 through November 30: Limit (~~one; release wild coho~~) 3; only one adult may be retained.
 - (e) From the Highway 101 Bridge to the forks:
 - (i) Open the first Saturday in June through (~~August 31 and December 1 through~~) April 30.
 - (ii) It is unlawful to use bait.
 - (iii) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length, as part of the limit.
 - (19) Calawah River, North Fork (Clallam County):**
 - (a) Open the first Saturday in June through (~~August~~) October 31.
 - (b) It is unlawful to use anything other than one barbless hook.
 - (c) It is unlawful to use bait.
 - (d) Release wild (unclipped) rainbow trout.
 - (e) Trout: (~~(+i)~~) Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

~~((ii) Release wild (unclipped) rainbow trout.))~~

(20) Calawah River, South Fork (Clallam County):

~~(a) ((Open the first Saturday in June through August 31 and December 1 through the last day in February from the mouth to the Olympic National Park boundary.~~

~~(b))~~ It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

~~((e))~~ (b) It is unlawful to use anything other than one barbless hook.

~~((d))~~ (c) It is unlawful to use bait.

~~((e) Trout:~~

~~(i))~~ (d) Release wild (unclipped) rainbow trout.

(e) From the mouth to the Olympic National Park boundary:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through the last day in February.

(ii) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

~~((ii) Release wild (unclipped) rainbow trout.))~~

(21) Cases Pond (Pacific County):

(a) Open the fourth Saturday in April through November 30 to juvenile anglers only.

(b) Landlocked salmon rules apply.

(22) Cedar Creek (Clallam County), outside of Olympic National Park:

(a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.

(b) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(c) Selective gear rules apply.

(d) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(23) Cedar Creek (Grays Harbor/Thurston counties) (Chehalis River tributary):

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(24) Cedar Creek (Jefferson County), outside Olympic National Park:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through the last day in February.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(25) Cedar River (Pacific County):

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Catch and release only.

(26) Chehalis River (Grays Harbor County), including all channels, sloughs, and interconnected waterways:

(a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.

(b) From the mouth (Highway 101 Bridge in Aberdeen) to South Elma Bridge (Wakefield Road) including all channels, sloughs, and interconnected waterways:

(i) All species August 1 through November 30:

(A) Single-point barbless hooks are required.

(B) Anglers may fish with two poles from the mouth to the South Elma Bridge (Wakefield Road), provided they possess a valid two-pole endorsement.

(ii) Game fish:

(A) Open the first Saturday in June through April 15:

(B) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(iii) Salmon:

~~(A) ((Open April 16 through June 30: Limit one salmon.~~

~~(B) Open)) From August 1 through September 15:~~

~~(I) Limit 6.~~

~~(II) Release adult salmon.~~

~~((C)) (B) From September 16 through ((January)) December 31:~~

~~(I) Limit 6; only ((one)) two adults may be retained.~~

~~(II) Only one wild adult coho may be retained.~~

~~(III) Release ((wild)) adult Chinook ((and wild coho)).~~

~~(C) From January 1 through January 31:~~

~~(I) Limit 6; only two adults may be retained.~~

~~(II) Release Chinook and wild coho.~~

~~(c) From South Elma Bridge (Wakefield Road) to the ((Porter Boat Launch)) confluence with Black River:~~

~~(i) All species: Single-point barbless hooks are required August 1 through November 30.~~

~~(ii) Game fish:~~

~~(A) Open the first Saturday in June through April 15.~~

~~(B) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.~~

~~(iii) Salmon:~~

~~(A) ((Open April 16 through June 30: Limit one salmon.~~

~~(B) Open August 1 through September 15:~~

~~(I) Limit 6.~~

~~(II) Release adult salmon.~~

~~(C) Open)) From September 16 through ((January)) December 31:~~

~~(I) Limit 6; only ((one)) two adults may be retained.~~

~~(II) Only one wild adult coho may be retained.~~

~~(III) Release ((wild)) Chinook ((and wild coho)).~~

~~(B) From January 1 through January 31:~~

~~(I) Limit 6; only two adults may be retained.~~

~~(II) Release Chinook and wild coho.~~

~~(d) ((From Porter Boat Launch to the Highway 6 Bridge in the town of Adna:~~

~~(i) All species August 16 through November 30: Single point barbless hooks are required.~~

~~(ii) Game fish:~~

~~(A) Open the first Saturday in June through April 15:~~

~~(B) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.~~

~~(iii) Salmon:~~

~~(A) Open April 16 through June 30: Limit one salmon.~~

~~(B) Open September 16 through January 31:~~

~~(I) Limit 6; only one adult may be retained.~~

~~(II) Release wild Chinook, wild coho, and chum.~~

(e)) From the (~~Highway 6 Bridge in the town of Adna~~) confluence of Black River to the high bridge on Weyerhaeuser 1000 line approximately 400 yards downstream of Roger Creek (south of Pe Ell):

(i) All species August 16 through November 30: Single-point barbless hooks are required.

(ii) Game fish:

(A) Open the first Saturday in June through April 15.

(B) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(iii) Salmon:

(A) (~~Open~~) From September 16 through (~~January~~) December 31:

(I) Limit 6; only (~~one~~) two adults may be retained.

(II) Only one wild coho may be retained.

(III) Release Chinook(~~, wild coho,~~) and chum.

(~~f~~) (B) From January 1 through January 31:

(I) Limit 6; only two adults may be retained.

(II) Release Chinook, chum, and wild coho.

(e) From high bridge on Weyerhaeuser 1000 line (approximately 400 yards downstream from Roger Creek, south of Pe Ell, including all forks) upstream:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through April 15.

(ii) Selective gear rules apply.

(iii) Release all fish, except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.

(27) **Chehalis River, South Fork (Lewis County):**

(a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.

(b) From the mouth to County Highway Bridge near Boistfort School:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through April 15.

(ii) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(c) From the County Highway Bridge near Boistfort School, upstream:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(ii) Selective gear rules apply.

(28) **Chenois Creek (Grays Harbor County):**

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(29) **Chester Creek (Grays Harbor County):**

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(30) **Chimacum Creek (Jefferson County):**

(a) From the mouth to Ness's Corner Road:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through August 31.

(ii) Selective gear rules apply.

(iii) Catch and release only.

(b) From Ness's Corner Road to headwaters:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(ii) Selective gear rules apply.

(iii) Catch and release only.

(31) **Clallam River (Clallam County):**

(a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.

(b) Open the first Saturday in June through January 31.

(c) Selective gear rules apply from the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(d) From the first Saturday in June through October 31: Catch and release only.

(e) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches.

(32) Clearwater River (Jefferson County):

(a) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(b) It is unlawful to use anything other than one barbless hook.

(c) Release wild (unclipped) rainbow trout.

(d) From the mouth to Snahapish River:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through (~~August 31~~) September 30 and December 1 through April 15:

(ii) It is unlawful to use bait the first Saturday in June through (~~September 30~~) August 31 and February 16 through April 15.

(iii) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(iv) Salmon: Open September 1 through September 30:

(A) Limit 3; only one adult may be retained;

(B) Release wild coho.

(e) From Snahapish River upstream:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through (~~August 31~~) September 30.

(ii) It is unlawful to use bait.

(iii) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length, as part of the limit.

(33) Cloquallum Creek (Grays Harbor County):

(a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.

(b) From the mouth to the outlet at Stump Lake:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through the last day in February.

(ii) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length, as part of the limit.

(c) From the outlet at Stump Lake upstream:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(ii) Selective gear rules apply.

(34) Coal Creek (Clallam County) tributary to Ozette River, outside the Olympic National Park boundary:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Trout:

(i) Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length, as part of the limit.

(ii) Release kokanee.

(35) Connor Creek (Grays Harbor County):

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(36) Cook Creek (Grays Harbor County), from the Quinault Indian Reservation boundary upstream:

- (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
- (b) Selective gear rules apply.
- (c) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(37) **Copalis River (Grays Harbor County):**

- (a) ~~((General river rules*))~~ From the mouth to Carlisle Bridge:
 - (i) From the first Saturday in June through last day in February: Open for game fish.
 - (ii) It is permissible to retain hatchery steelhead with a dorsal fin height of less than 2 1/8 inches or with an adipose or ventral fin clip.

~~((b) Rules by river section:~~

- ~~(i) From the mouth to Carlisle Bridge:~~
 - ~~(A*))~~ (iii) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

~~((B*))~~ (iv) Salmon:

- ~~((I) Open))~~ (A) From October 1 through ~~((January))~~ December 31.
- ~~((II))~~ (B) Limit 6; only ~~((one))~~ two adult salmon may be retained.

~~((III))~~ (I) Only one wild adult coho may be retained.

(II) Release ~~((adult))~~ Chinook ~~((and ehum))~~.

- ~~((ii))~~ (b) From Carlisle Bridge upstream: Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(38) **Crim Creek (Lewis County) (Chehalis River tributary):**

- (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
- (b) Selective gear rules apply.

(39) **Crocker Lake (Jefferson County):** Closed.

(40) **Crooked Creek (Clallam County) and tributaries that are outside of Olympic National Park:**

- (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 15.
- (b) Selective gear rules apply.
- (c) Trout:
 - (i) Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.
 - (ii) Release kokanee.

(41) **Damon Lake (Grays Harbor County):** Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(42) **Deep Creek (Clallam County) (~~((Humptulips River tributary))~~):**

- (a) Open December 1 through January 31.
- (b) Selective gear rules apply.
- (c) Release all fish, except mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.

(43) **Deep Creek (Grays Harbor County) (Humptulips River tributary):**

- (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
- (b) Selective gear rules apply.

(44) **Delezene Creek (Grays Harbor County) (Chehalis River tributary):**

- (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
- (b) Selective gear rules apply.

(45) **Dickey River (Clallam County):**

- (a) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.
- (b) Release wild (unclipped) rainbow trout.
- (c) It is unlawful to use anything other than one barbless hook.
- (d) From Olympic National Park boundary upstream to the confluence of the East and West forks:
- (i) Open the first Saturday in June through (~~August 31 and December 1 through~~) April 30.
- (ii) It is unlawful to use bait the first Saturday in June through (~~September 30~~) August 31 and February 16 through April 30.
- (iii) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.
- (iv) Salmon: Open July 1 through (~~August 31~~) November 30:
- (A) July 1 through August 31:
- (I) Limit 6; only 2 adults (~~salmon~~) may be retained.
- (II) Release wild adult Chinook and wild adult coho.
- (B) September 1 through November 30: Limit 3; only one adult may be retained.
- (e) From the confluence of the East and West forks upstream (for both forks):
- (i) Open the first Saturday in June through (~~August 31 and December 1 through~~) April 30.
- (ii) It is unlawful to use bait.
- (iii) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.
- (46) **Donkey Creek (Grays Harbor County):**
- (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
- (b) Selective gear rules apply.
- (47) **Duck Lake (Grays Harbor County):**
- (a) Crappie: No limit and no minimum length.
- (b) Grass carp: No limit for anglers and bow and arrow fishing.
- (48) **Dungeness River (Clallam County):**
- (a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.
- (b) From the mouth to the forks at Dungeness Forks Campground:
- (i) Open October 6 through January 31.
- (ii) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches.
- (iii) Salmon:
- (A) Open (~~only~~) October 16 through November 30 from the mouth to the hatchery intake pipe at river mile 11.3 (~~from October 16 through December 31~~).
- (B) Limit 4 coho only.
- (C) Release wild coho.
- (c) From Gold Creek upstream: Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.
- (49) **East Twin River (Clallam County):**
- (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
- (b) Selective gear rules apply.
- (c) Catch and release only.
- (50) **Eight Creek (Lewis County) (tributary to Elk Creek, which is a Chehalis River tributary):**
- (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
- (b) Selective gear rules apply.
- (51) **Elk Creek (Clallam County), outside of Olympic National Park:**

- (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 15.
- (b) Selective gear rules apply.
- (c) Trout:
 - (i) Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.
 - (ii) Release kokanee.
- (52) **Elk Creek (Lewis County) (Chehalis River tributary):**
 - (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
 - (b) Selective gear rules apply.
- (53) **Elk Lake (Clallam County):**
 - (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 15.
 - (b) Selective gear rules apply.
 - (c) Trout:
 - (i) Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.
 - (ii) Release kokanee.
- (54) **Elk River (Grays Harbor County):**
 - (a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.
 - (b) From the mouth (Highway 105 Bridge) to the confluence of the middle branch:
 - (i) Open the first Saturday in June through the last day in February.
 - (ii) From August 16 through November 30: Single-point barbless hooks are required.
 - (iii) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.
 - (iv) Salmon: Open October 1 through November 30.
 - (A) Daily limit 6, of which 2 may be adults.
 - (B) Only one wild adult coho may be retained.
 - (C) Release adult Chinook.
 - (c) From confluence of the middle branch upstream:
 - (i) Open the first Saturday in June through the last day in February.
 - (ii) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.
- (55) **Elkhorn Creek (Pacific County) (Smith Creek tributary):**
 - (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
 - (b) Selective gear rules apply.
- (56) **Ellis Creek (Pacific County) (Willapa River tributary):**
 - (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 15.
 - (b) Selective gear rules apply.
- (57) **Ellsworth Creek (Pacific County) (Naselle River tributary):**
 - (a) Open the first Saturday in June through September 30.
 - (b) Selective gear rules apply.
- (58) **Failor Lake (Grays Harbor County):**
 - (a) Open the fourth Saturday in April through October 31.
 - (b) Trout: It is unlawful to retain more than two trout over 15 inches in length per day.
- (59) **Fairchild Creek (Pacific County) (Wilson Creek tributary, which is a Willapa River tributary):**
 - (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
 - (b) Selective gear rules apply.

- (60) **Fall River (Pacific County) (North River tributary):**
 (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
 (b) Selective gear rules apply.
- (61) **Falls Creek (Pacific County) (Willapa River tributary):**
 (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 15.
 (b) Selective gear rules apply.
- (62) **Fern Creek (Pacific County) (Willapa River tributary):**
 (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 15.
 (b) Selective gear rules apply.
- (63) **Finn Creek (Pacific County) (North Nemah River tributary):**
 Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
- (64) **Fork Creek (Pacific County) (Willapa River tributary):**
 (a) From Forks Creek Hatchery rack upstream 500 feet at fishing boundary sign:
 (i) Open only for anglers with lower extremity disabilities who must permanently use a medically prescribed assistive device every time for mobility as defined in WAC 220-413-150 and possess a designated harvester companion card.
 (ii) Night closure in effect.
 (iii) From October 1 through November 30:
 (A) Single-point barbless hooks are required.
 (B) Stationary gear restriction applies.
 (iv) Open the first Saturday in June through July 15 and October 1 through March 31: Release all fish, except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.
 (v) Salmon open October 1 through January 31.
 (A) From October 1 through November 30:
 (I) Limit 6; only 3 adults may be retained, and only 2 may be wild ((adult)) coho.
 (II) Release wild Chinook.
 (B) From December 1 through January 31:
 (I) Limit 6; only 2 adults may be retained, and only one may be a wild ((adult)) coho.
 (II) Release wild Chinook.
 (b) From the fishing boundary sign 500 feet above Forks Creek Hatchery rack upstream to the source:
 (i) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
 (ii) Selective gear rules apply.
- (65) **Garrard Creek (Grays Harbor County) (Chehalis River tributary):**
 (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
 (b) Selective gear rules apply.
- (66) **Gibbs Lake (Jefferson County):**
 (a) Selective gear rules apply.
 (b) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.
 (c) Trout: Catch and release only.
- (67) **Goodman Creek (Jefferson County), outside Olympic National Park:**
 (a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.
 (b) Open the first Saturday in June through the last day in February.
 (c) Selective gear rules apply.
 (d) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(68) **Grass Creek (Grays Harbor County):**

- (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
- (b) Selective gear rules apply.

(69) **Gray Wolf River (Clallam County):** From the bridge at river mile 1.0, upstream:

- (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
- (b) Selective gear rules apply.
- (c) Catch and release only.

(70) **Halfmoon Creek (Pacific County) (Willapa River tributary):**

- (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 15.
- (b) Selective gear rules apply.

(71) **Halfway Creek (Lewis County) (tributary of Stillman Creek, which is a Chehalis River tributary):**

- (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 from the mouth to the second bridge crossing on Pe Ell McDonald Road.
- (b) Selective gear rules apply.

(72) **Hanaford Creek (Lewis County) (Skookumchuck River tributary):**

- (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
- (b) Selective gear rules apply.

(73) **Harris Creek (Grays Harbor County) (Chehalis River tributary):**

- (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
- (b) Trout: Selective gear rules apply.

(74) **Hoh River (Jefferson County):**

(a) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(b) Release wild (unclipped) rainbow trout.

(c) It is unlawful to use anything other than one barbless hook.

(d) From the Olympic National Park boundary upstream to the DNR Oxbow Campground Boat Launch:

(i) Open ~~((August 1 through October 10 and November 21 through April 15.~~

~~(A) From August 1 through October 10 and November 21 through March 31: Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit)) July 1 through August 31 and September 16 through April 15:~~

~~(A) From July 1 through August 31 and September 16 through March 31: Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.~~

(B) From April 1 through April 15: Trout minimum length 14 inches.

(C) From November ~~((21))~~ 1 through February 15: The trout limit may include one additional hatchery steelhead.

(ii) It is unlawful to use bait the first Saturday in June through September 30 and February 16 through April 15.

(iii) Salmon: Open September ~~((1))~~ 16 through ~~((October 10 and November 21 through))~~ November 30: Limit 6; only ~~((one))~~ 2 adults may be retained~~((. Release wild coho))~~ of which only one may be a Chinook.

(e) From the DNR Oxbow Campground Boat Launch to Morgans Crossing Boat Launch ~~((site))~~:

(i) Open ~~((August))~~ July 1 through ~~((October 10 and November 21 through))~~ August 31 and September 16 through April 15.

(ii) It is unlawful to use bait.

(iii) (~~From August 1 through April 15~~) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(iv) Salmon open (~~November 21~~) October 16 through November 30: Limit 6; only ~~(one)~~ 2 adults may be retained, of which only one may be a Chinook. (~~Release wild coho.~~)

(f) From Morgan's Crossing Boat Launch upstream to the Olympic National Park boundary below mouth of South Fork Hoh River:

(i) Open (~~August~~) July 1 through (~~October 10 and November 21 through~~) August 31 and September 16 through April 15.

(ii) It is unlawful to use bait.

(iii) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device.

(iv) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(75) Hoh River, South Fork (Jefferson County), outside the Olympic National Park boundary:

(a) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(b) Open (~~August~~) July 1 through (~~October 10 and November 21 through~~) August 31 and September 16 through April 15.

(c) It is unlawful to use anything other than one barbless hook.

(d) It is unlawful to use bait.

(e) Release wild (unclipped) rainbow trout.

(f) Trout: (~~(i)~~) Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(~~(ii) Release wild (unclipped) rainbow trout.~~)

(76) Hoko River (Clallam County):

(a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.

(b) From the mouth to the upper Hoko Bridge:

(i) Closed to fishing from the hatchery ladder downstream 100 feet.

(ii) Open the first Saturday in June through March 15. Open to fly fishing only September 1 through October 31, except mandatory retention of hatchery steelhead.

(iii) Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.

(c) From the upper Hoko Bridge to Ellis Creek Bridge (river mile 18.5):

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31 to fly fishing only, except mandatory retention of hatchery steelhead.

(ii) Release all fish except anglers may retain up to two hatchery steelhead, except mandatory retention of hatchery steelhead.

(77) Hoquiam River, including West Fork (Grays Harbor County):

(a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.

(b) From the mouth (Highway 101 Bridge on Simpson) to Dekay Road Bridge (West Fork):

(i) August 16 through November 30: Single-point barbless hooks are required.

(ii) Open the first Saturday in June through the last day of February: Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(iii) Salmon: Open October 1 through December 31.

(A) Daily limit 6, of which 2 may be adults.

(B) Only one wild coho may be retained.

(C) Release Chinook.

(c) From Dekay Road Bridge upstream:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through the last day of February.

(ii) Selective gear rules apply.

(iii) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(78) **Hoquiam River, East Fork (Grays Harbor County):**

(a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.

(b) From the mouth to the confluence of Berryman Creek:

(i) August 16 through November 30: Single-point barbless hooks are required.

(ii) Open the first Saturday in June through the last day of February: Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(iii) Salmon: Open October 1 through December 31.

(A) Daily limit 6, of which 2 may be adults.

(B) Only one wild coho may be retained.

(C) Release Chinook.

(c) From the confluence of Berryman Creek upstream to Youman's Road Bridge:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through the last day of February.

(ii) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(79) **Hoquiam River, Middle Fork (Grays Harbor County):** From the mouth upstream:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through last day of October.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(80) **Horseshoe Lake (Jefferson County):**

(a) Open the fourth Saturday in April through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(d) Trout: Limit one.

(81) **Howe Creek (Jefferson County):**

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Catch and release only.

(82) **Humptulips River (Grays Harbor County):**

(a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.

(b) From the mouth (Jessie Slough) to the Highway 101 Bridge, including all channels, sloughs, and interconnected waterways:

(i) From August 16 through November 30:

(A) Night closure in effect.

(B) Single-point barbless hooks are required.

(ii) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31: Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(iii) Salmon open September 1 through January 31:

(A) From September 1 through (~~September 30~~) October 15:
 (I) Limit 6; only 2 adults may be retained(~~(, and only one may be a wild adult Chinook)~~).
 (II) Release wild Chinook and wild coho.
 (B) From October (~~(1)~~) 16 through (~~November 15~~) October 31:
 (I) Limit 6; only 2 adults may be retained, and only one may be (~~(an adult)~~) a Chinook.
 (II) Release wild Chinook and wild coho.
 (C) From November (~~(16)~~) 1 through January 31:
 (I) Limit 6: Only (~~(one)~~) two adults may be retained.
 (II) Release Chinook and wild coho.
 (c) From the Highway 101 Bridge to the confluence of the East and West forks:
 (i) From December 1 through March 31: It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.
 (ii) From August 16 through November 30:
 (A) Night closure in effect.
 (B) Single-point barbless hooks are required.
 (iii) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31:
 (A) From the first Saturday in June through the last day in February: Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.
 (B) From March 1 through March 31:
 (I) Release all fish, except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.
 (II) Selective gear rules apply.
 (iv) Salmon open September 1 through January 31:
 (A) From September 1 through (~~September 30~~) October 15:
 (I) Limit 6; only 2 adults may be retained(~~(, and only one may be a wild adult Chinook)~~).
 (II) Release wild Chinook and wild coho.
 (B) From October (~~(1)~~) 16 through (~~November 15~~) October 31:
 (I) Limit 6; only 2 adults may be retained, and only one may be (~~(an adult)~~) a Chinook.
 (II) Release wild Chinook and wild coho.
 (C) From November (~~(16)~~) 1 through January 31:
 (I) Limit 6; only (~~(one)~~) two adults may be retained.
 (II) Release Chinook and wild coho.
(83) Humptulips River, East Fork (Grays Harbor County):
 (a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.
 (b) From the mouth to the concrete bridge on Forest Service Road 220:
 (i) August 16 through October 31: Anti-snagging rule applies and night closure in effect.
 (ii) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31: Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.
 (~~(b)~~) (c) From the concrete bridge on Forest Service Road 220 upstream:
 (i) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
 (ii) Selective gear rules apply.
(84) Humptulips River, West Fork (Grays Harbor County):
 (a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.

- (b) From the mouth to Donkey Creek:
 - (i) August 16 through November 30: Anti-snagging rule applies and night closure in effect.
 - (ii) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31:
 - (A) From the first Saturday in June through the last day in February: Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.
 - (B) From March 1 through March 31:
 - (I) Selective gear rules apply.
 - (II) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.
 - (III) Release all fish, except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.
- (c) From Donkey Creek upstream:
 - (i) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
 - (ii) Selective gear rules apply.
- (85) Independence Creek (Grays Harbor County) (Chehalis River tributary):**
 - (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
 - (b) Selective gear rules apply.
- (86) Jimmy-Come-Lately Creek (Clallam County):**
 - (a) From the mouth to confluence with East Fork:
 - (i) Open the first Saturday in June through August 31.
 - (ii) Selective gear rules apply.
 - (iii) Catch and release only.
 - (b) From confluence with East Fork upstream, including East Fork: Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
- (87) Joe Creek (Grays Harbor County):**
 - (a) From the mouth to Ocean Beach Road Bridge:
 - (i) August 16 through November 30: Single-point barbless hooks are required.
 - (ii) Open the first Saturday in June through November 30: Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.
 - (iii) Salmon open October 1 through (~~(November 30)~~) December 31:
 - (A) Limit 6; only (~~(one)~~) two adults may be retained.
 - (B) Only one wild adult Coho may be retained.
 - (C) Release (~~(adult)~~) Chinook (~~(and chum)~~).
 - (b) From Ocean Beach Road Bridge upstream:
 - (i) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
 - (ii) Selective gear rules apply.
 - (iii) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.
- (88) Johns River (Grays Harbor County):**
 - (a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.
 - (b) From the mouth (Highway 105 Bridge) to Ballon Creek:
 - (i) August 16 through November 30: Single-point barbless hooks are required.
 - (ii) Open the first Saturday in June through the last day in February: Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.
 - (iii) Salmon: Open October 1 through November 30.

(A) Daily limit 6, of which 2 may be adults.

(B) Only one wild adult coho may be retained.

(C) Release adult Chinook.

(c) From Ballon Creek upstream, including North and South Forks:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through September 30 and December 1 through the last day in February.

(ii) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(89) **Jones Creek (Lewis County) (Chehalis River tributary):**

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(90) **Kalaloch Creek (Jefferson County), outside Olympic National Park:**

(a) Closed within the section posted as the Olympic National Park water supply.

(b) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.

(c) Open the first Saturday in June through the last day in February:

(i) Selective gear rules apply.

(ii) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(91) **Leland Creek (Jefferson County):**

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Catch and release only.

(92) **Lena Lake, Lower (Jefferson County):** The inlet stream is closed from the mouth upstream to the footbridge (about 100 feet).

(93) **Lincoln Creek, including South Fork (Lewis County) (Chehalis River tributary):**

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(94) **Lincoln Pond (Clallam County):** Open to juvenile anglers only.

(95) **Little Hoko River (Clallam County):**

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Catch and release only.

(96) **Little Hoquiam River (Grays Harbor County):**

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(97) **Little North River (Grays Harbor County) (North River tributary):**

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(98) **Little Quilcene River (Jefferson County):**

(a) From the mouth to the Little Quilcene River Bridge on Penny Creek Road:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(ii) From the mouth to Highway 101 Bridge: Open first Saturday in June through August 31.

(iii) Selective gear rules apply.

(iv) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(v) Catch and release only.

(b) From Little Quilcene River Bridge on Penny Creek Road upstream: Open the first Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

(99) **Long Beach Peninsula waterways and lakes (Pacific County):** Open the fourth Saturday in April through October 31.

(100) **Loomis Lake (Pacific County):** Open the fourth Saturday in April through October 31.

(101) **Loomis Pond (Grays Harbor County):** Closed.

(102) **Lower Salmon Creek (Grays Harbor/Pacific counties) (North River tributary):**

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(103) **Lucas Creek (Lewis County) (tributary to the Newaukum River North Fork):**

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Trout: Catch and release only.

(104) **Ludlow Creek (Jefferson County):**

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Catch and release only.

(105) **Ludlow Lake (Jefferson County):** Open the fourth Saturday in April through October 31.

(106) **Lyre River (Clallam County):**

(a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.

(b) From the mouth to falls near river mile 3:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through January 31.

(ii) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches.

(c) From the falls to the Olympic National Park boundary:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(ii) Selective gear rules apply.

(iii) Catch and release only, except mandatory hatchery steelhead retention applies.

(107) **Matheny Creek (Jefferson County) (Queets River tributary), outside Olympic National Park:**

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through (~~August 31~~) September 30.

(b) It is unlawful to use (~~anything other than one barbless hook~~) bait.

(c) Release wild (unmarked) rainbow trout.

(d) It is unlawful to use anything other than one barbless hook.

(e) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(~~((d) Release wild (unmarked) rainbow trout.))~~)

(108) **McDonald Creek (Clallam County):**

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Catch and release only.

(109) **Middle Nemah River (Pacific County):**

(a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.

(b) From the mouth upstream to the department of natural resources bridge on the Middle Nemah A-Line Road:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31: Release all fish except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.

- (ii) August 1 through November 30:
 - (A) Night closure in effect.
 - (B) Single-point barbless hooks are required.
- (iii) Salmon:
 - (A) Open September 1 through January 31.
 - (B) Limit 6; no more than 4 adults may be retained.
 - (C) Release wild Chinook.
- (c) From the department of natural resources bridge on the Middle Nemah A-Line Road upstream:
 - (i) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31:
 - (A) Selective gear rules apply.
 - (B) Release all fish, except mandatory retention of hatchery steelhead.
 - (ii) August 16 through November 30:
 - (A) Anti-snagging rule applies ((and)).
 - (B) Night closure in effect.
- (110) **Mill Creek (Pacific County) (Willapa River tributary):**
 - (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
 - (b) Selective gear rules apply.
- (111) **Mill Creek Pond (Grays Harbor County):** Open to juvenile anglers only.
- (112) **Mitchell Creek (Lewis County) (tributary to the Newaukum River North Fork):**
 - (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
 - (b) Selective gear rules apply.
 - (c) Trout: Catch and release only.
- (113) **Moclips River (Grays Harbor County):**
 - (a) Open from the mouth to the Quinault Indian Reservation boundary from the first Saturday in June through the last day in February.
 - (b) Trout:
 - (i) Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.
 - (ii) It is permissible to retain steelhead with a dorsal fin height of less than 2 1/8 inches or with an adipose or ventral fin clip.
 - (c) Salmon: Open October 1 through December 31.
 - (i) Daily limit 6, of which 2 may be adults.
 - (ii) Only one wild adult coho may be retained.
 - (iii) Release Chinook.
- (114) **Morse Creek (Clallam County):**
 - (a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.
 - (b) From the mouth to Port Angeles Dam:
 - (i) Open from December 1 through January 31.
 - (ii) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches.
 - (c) From Port Angeles Dam upstream: Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
- (115) **Mosquito Creek (Jefferson County):**
 - (a) Open outside Olympic National Park upstream to the Goodman 3000 Mainline Bridge from the first Saturday in June through the last day in February.
 - (b) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.
 - (c) Selective gear rules apply.

(d) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length, as part of the limit.

(116) **Mox Chehalis Creek (Grays Harbor County) (Chehalis River tributary):** Open the first Saturday in June through October 31: Selective gear rules apply.

(117) **Naselle River (Pacific/Wahkiakum counties):**

(a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.

(b) Selective gear rules apply February 1 through April 15.

(c) From the Highway 101 Bridge to the Highway 4 Bridge:

(i) From August 1 through November 15:

(A) Night closure in effect.

(B) Anti-snagging rule applies.

(C) Barbless hooks are required.

(D) From the South Fork upstream to the Highway 4 Bridge: Stationary gear restriction applies.

(ii) From Highway 101 Bridge upstream to Highway 401: Anglers may fish with two poles August 1 through January 31, provided they possess a valid two-pole endorsement.

(iii) Open the first Saturday in June through April 15: Release all fish except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.

(iv) Salmon open August 1 through January 31:

(A) From August 1 through October 31:

(I) Limit 6; only 4 adults may be retained.

(II) Release wild Chinook.

(B) From November 1 through January 31:

(I) Limit 6; only 4 adults may be retained and only two adults may be wild coho.

(II) Release wild Chinook.

(d) From the Highway 4 Bridge to the upstream entrance of the Naselle Hatchery Attraction Channel:

(i) Closed waters from the upstream entrance of the hatchery attraction channel downstream 300 feet.

(ii) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(iii) From August 16 through October 15: Bait or lure must be suspended below a float.

(iv) From August 16 through November 15:

(A) Night closure in effect.

(B) Anti-snagging rule applies.

(C) Barbless hooks are required.

(D) Stationary gear rules in effect.

~~((iv))~~ (v) Open the first Saturday in June through July 31 and September 16 through April 15: Release all fish, except mandatory retention of hatchery steelhead.

~~((v))~~ (vi) Salmon open August 16 through January 31:

(A) From August 16 through September 15:

(I) Limit 6; only 2 adults may be retained.

(II) Release wild Chinook.

(B) From September 16 through October 31:

(I) Limit 6; only 4 adults may be retained.

(II) Release wild Chinook.

(C) From November 1 through January 31:

(I) Limit 6; only 4 adults may be retained and only two may be wild ~~(adult)~~ coho.

(II) Release wild Chinook.

(e) From the upstream entrance of the Naselle Hatchery Attraction Channel to the Crown Mainline (Salme) Bridge:

(i) The following areas are closed:

(A) From the falls in Sec. 6, T10N, R8W (Wahkiakum Co.) downstream 400 feet.

(B) Downstream of the full spanning concrete diversion structure at the Naselle Hatchery: Closed August 1 through October 15.

(ii) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(iii) From August 1 through November 15:

(A) Night closure in effect.

(B) Anti-snagging rule applies.

(C) Barbless hooks are required.

(D) Stationary gear rules in effect.

(iv) Open the first Saturday in June through April 15: Release all fish, except mandatory retention of hatchery steelhead.

(v) Salmon open October 16 through January 31:

(A) From October 16 through October 31:

(I) Limit 6; only 4 adults may be retained.

(II) Release wild Chinook.

(B) From November 1 through January 31:

(I) Limit 6; only 4 adults may be retained and only two may be wild ((adult)) coho.

(II) Release wild Chinook.

(f) From the Crown Mainline (Salme) Bridge to the mouth of the North Fork:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through April 15: Release all fish except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.

(ii) From August 16 through November 30:

(A) Night closure in effect.

(B) Anti-snagging rule applies.

(g) Upstream from the mouth of the North Fork:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(ii) Selective gear rules apply.

(iii) Release all fish, except mandatory retention of hatchery steelhead.

(118) North Naselle River (Pacific County):

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(119) South Naselle River (Pacific County):

(a) From the mouth to Bean Creek: Open the first Saturday in June through the last day in February.

(b) From the first Saturday in June through August 15: Selective gear rules apply.

(c) August 16 through November 30: Anti-snagging rule applies and night closure in effect.

(d) Release all fish except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.

(120) Neil Creek (Grays Harbor County) (Wynoochee River tributary):

(a) Open from the mouth to USFS 22 Road from the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(121) Newaukum River, including South Fork (Lewis County):

(a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.

(b) From the mouth to Leonard Road near Onalaska:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31: Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(ii) August 16 through November 30:

(A) Night closure in effect.

(B) Single-point barbless hooks are required.

(iii) Salmon open October ((±)) 16 through December 31:

(A) Limit 6; only ((~~one~~)) two adults may be retained.

(B) Only one wild coho may be retained.

(C) Release Chinook((~~, wild coho,~~)) and chum.

(c) From Leonard Road near Onalaska to Highway 508 Bridge near Kearny Creek:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31: Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(ii) August 16 through November 30:

(A) Night closure in effect.

(B) Single-point barbless hooks are required.

(d) From Highway 508 Bridge upstream:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(ii) Selective gear rules apply.

(iii) Trout: Catch and release only.

(iv) August 16 through October 31: Night closure in effect.

(122) Newaukum River, Middle Fork (Lewis County), from the mouth to Tauscher Road Bridge:

(a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.

(b) Open the first Saturday in June to March 31.

(c) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length.

(123) Newaukum River, North Fork (Lewis County), from the mouth to 400 feet below the Chehalis city water intake:

(a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.

(b) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31.

(c) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length.

(124) Newman Creek (Grays Harbor County) (Chehalis River tributary):

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(125) Newkah Creek (Grays Harbor County):

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(126) Niawiakum River (Pacific County): From Highway 101 Bridge to the South Bend/Palix Road Bridge:

(a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.

(b) August 16 through November 30:

(i) Night closure in effect.

(ii) Single-point barbless hooks are required.

(c) Open the first Saturday in June through November 30.

(d) Salmon open September 1 through November 30.

(i) Limit 6; only 2 adults may be retained.

(ii) Release wild Chinook.

(127) **North Nemah River (Pacific County):**

(a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.

(b) From Highway 101 Bridge upstream to the bridge on Nemah Valley Road:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31.

(ii) Release all fish, except mandatory retention of hatchery steelhead and may retain one 15 inch or longer cutthroat trout.

(iii) From August 1 through November 30:

(A) Night closure in effect.

(B) Stationary gear restriction applies.

(C) Single-point barbless hooks are required.

(iv) Salmon open August 1 through January 31.

(A) Limit 6; only 4 adults may be retained.

(B) Release wild Chinook.

(c) From the bridge on Nemah Valley Road upstream to approximately 1.66 miles to the Hancock property line:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through July 31 and November 16 through March 31.

(ii) Release all fish, except mandatory retention of hatchery steelhead and may retain one 15 inch or longer cutthroat trout.

(iii) From August 16 through November 30:

(A) Anti-snagging rule applies.

(B) Night closure in effect.

(iv) Selective gear rules apply December 1 through March 31.

(d) From the Hancock property line upstream approximately 900 feet to Nemah Hatchery barrier dam:

(i) Closed from bridge at Nemah Hatchery upstream to Nemah Hatchery barrier dam, except open only for salmon for anglers that possess a senior's license (70 years old or older) from August 16 through November 15.

(ii) Open the first Saturday in June through July 31 and November 16 through March 31.

(iii) Release all fish, except mandatory retention of hatchery steelhead and may retain one 15 inch or longer cutthroat trout.

(iv) From August 16 through November 30:

(A) Anti-snagging rule applies.

(B) Night closure in effect.

(v) Selective gear rules apply December 1 through March 31.

(vi) Salmon open only for anglers that possess a senior's license (70 years old or older) from August 16 through November 15.

(A) Limit 6; only 4 adults may be retained.

(B) Release wild Chinook.

(e) From the Nemah Hatchery barrier dam upstream to N-700 Road:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31.

(ii) Release all game fish, except mandatory retention of hatchery steelhead and may retain one 15 inch or longer cutthroat trout.

(iii) From August 16 through November 30:

(A) Night closure in effect.

(B) Anti-snagging rule applies.

(iv) Selective gear rules apply from December 1 through March 31:

(v) Salmon open October 1 through January 31:

(A) Limit 6; only 4 adults may be retained.

(B) Release wild Chinook.

(f) From the N-700 Road upstream to Cruiser Creek:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31.

- (ii) Release all fish, except mandatory retention of hatchery steelhead and may retain one 15 inch or longer cutthroat trout.
- (iii) From August 16 through November 30:
 - (A) Night closure in effect.
 - (B) Anti-snagging rule applies.
- (iv) Selective gear rules apply from December 1 through March 31.
- (128) North River (Grays Harbor/Pacific counties):**
 - (a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.
 - (b) From the Highway 105 Bridge to ~~((Salmon Creek (located approximately 2 miles upstream from Highway 101)))~~ Fall River:
 - (i) August 16 through November 30:
 - (A) Night closure in effect.
 - (B) Single-point barbless hooks are required.
 - (ii) Open the first Saturday in June through the last day in February: Release all fish, except mandatory retention of hatchery steelhead.
 - (iii) Salmon open October 1 through January 31:
 - (A) Limit 6; only 4 adults may be retained.
 - (B) Release wild Chinook.
 - (c) From Salmon Creek (located approximately 2 miles upstream from Highway 101) to Fall River:
 - (i) August 16 through November 30(~~(+ (A) Night closure in effect))~~).
 - ~~((B))~~ (ii) Anti-snagging rule applies.
 - ~~((C) Single point barbless hooks are required.~~
 - ~~(ii) Open the first Saturday in June through the last day in February: Release all fish, except mandatory retention of hatchery steelhead.~~
 - ~~(iii) Salmon open October 1 through January 31: (A) Limit 6; only 4 adults may be retained. (B) Release wild Chinook.)~~
 - (d) From Fall River to Raimie Creek:
 - (i) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
 - (ii) Selective gear rules apply.
 - (iii) Release all fish, except mandatory retention of hatchery steelhead.
 - (129) Owens Pond (Pacific County):** The first Saturday in June through October 31 season.
 - (130) Palix River, including all forks (Pacific County):**
 - (a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.
 - (b) From the Highway 101 Bridge to the mouth of the Middle Fork:
 - (i) August 16 through November 30:
 - (A) Night closure in effect.
 - (B) Single-point barbless hooks are required.
 - (ii) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31: Release all fish, except mandatory retention of hatchery steelhead.
 - (iii) Salmon:
 - (A) Open September 1 through January 31.
 - (B) Limit 6; only 4 adults may be retained.
 - (C) Release wild Chinook.
 - (c) From the confluence with the Middle Fork upstream and all forks, including South Fork Palix and Canon rivers:
 - (i) August 16 through October 15:
 - (A) Anti-snagging rule applies.
 - (B) Night closure in effect.

(ii) From the first Saturday in June through August 15, and from December 16 through March 31: Selective gear rules apply.

(iii) Open the first Saturday in June through October 15, and from December 16 through March 31.

(iv) Release all fish, except mandatory retention of hatchery steelhead.

(131) Palmquist Creek (Clallam County), outside of Olympic National Park:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 15.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Trout:

(i) Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(ii) Release kokanee.

(132) Peabody Creek (Clallam County): Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 to juvenile anglers only.

(133) Penny Creek (Jefferson County): Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(134) Petroleum Creek (Clallam County): From the Olympic National Park boundary upstream:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(135) Pheasant Lake (Jefferson County): Open the fourth Saturday in April through October 31.

(136) Pilchuck Creek (Clallam County) (Sooes River tributary):

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(137) Pioneer Creek (Grays Harbor County) (North River tributary):

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(138) Pleasant Lake (Clallam County): Trout: Kokanee minimum length 6 inches, maximum length 18 inches.

(139) Porter Creek (Grays Harbor County) (Chehalis River tributary):

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(140) Promised Land Pond (Grays Harbor County): Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(141) Pysht River (Clallam County):

(a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.

(b) Open the first Saturday in June through January 31.

(c) Selective gear rules apply.

(d) From the first Saturday in June through October 31: Catch and release only.

(e) From November 1 through January 31: Trout minimum length 14 inches.

~~(142) ((Rock Creek (Lewis County) (Chehalis River tributary):~~

~~(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.~~

~~(b) Selective gear rules apply.~~

~~(143) Stearns Creek (Lewis County) (Chehalis River tributary):~~

~~(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.~~

~~(b) Selective gear rules apply.~~

~~(144) Stillman Creek (Lewis County) (Chehalis River tributary):~~

~~(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 from the mouth to water supply pipeline at Mill Creek.~~

~~(b) Selective gear rules apply.~~

~~(145) Stowe Creek (Lewis County) (Chehalis River tributary):~~

~~(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.~~

~~(b) Selective gear rules apply.~~

~~(146)) Quigg Lake (Grays Harbor County):~~

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through April 15.

(b) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches.

(c) Salmon:

(i) Open October 1 through January 31.

(ii) Limit 6 hatchery coho salmon; only 4 may be adult hatchery coho.

~~((147)) (143) Quillayute River (Clallam County), outside of Olympic National Park:~~

~~(a) Open ((January)) July 1 through ((September 30 and November 16 through December 31)) June 30.~~

(b) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(c) Release wild (unclipped) rainbow trout.

(d) It is unlawful to use anything other than one barbless hook.

(e) Trout:

(i) From May 1 through the Friday before the first Saturday in June: Release all ((fish)) trout except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.

~~((f)) (ii) From the first Saturday in June through ((September 30 and November 16 through)) March 31: Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.~~

~~((g)) (iii) From April 1 through April 30: Trout minimum length 14 inches.~~

~~((h)) (iv) From November ((16)) 1 through the last day in February: Anglers may retain one additional hatchery steelhead as part of the limit.~~

~~((i)) (f) Salmon: Open February 1 through ((September 30 and November 16 through)) November 30:~~

(i) From February 1 through August 31:

(A) Limit 6; only 2 adults may be retained.

(B) Release wild adult Chinook and wild adult coho.

(ii) From September 1 through ((September 30 and November 16 through)) November 30: ~~((A) Limit 2; only one may be a Chinook.~~

~~(B) Release wild coho)) Limit 6; only 3 adults may be retained, and only one of the adults may be wild.~~

~~((148)) (144) Quinault River (Grays Harbor County): From the mouth at the upper end of Quinault Lake upstream to the Olympic National Park boundary:~~

(a) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(b) Open the first Saturday in June through April 15.

(c) Release wild (unclipped) rainbow trout.

(d) It is unlawful to use anything other than one barbless hook.

(e) It is unlawful to use bait the first Saturday in June through September 30 and February 16 through April 15.

(f) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(g) Salmon open July 1 through November 30:

(i) From July 1 through September 30 limit 6 jack salmon only.

(ii) From October 1 through November 30:

(A) Limit 6; only 2 adults may be retained.

(B) Release sockeye and chum.

~~((149))~~ (145) Quinn Creek (Clallam County), outside of Olympic

National Park:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 15.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Trout:

(i) Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(ii) Release kokanee.

~~((150))~~ (146) Radar Ponds (Pacific County): Salmon: Landlocked salmon rules apply.

~~((151))~~ (147) Raimie Creek and all forks (Pacific County) (North River tributary):

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

~~((152))~~ (148) Ripley Creek (Jefferson County):

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Catch and release only.

~~((153))~~ (149) Rock Creek (Grays Harbor County) (Chehalis River tributary):

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

~~((154))~~ (150) Rock Creek (Lewis County) (Chehalis River tributary):

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(151) Rocky Brook (Jefferson County) (Dosewallips River tributary): From the falls 1000 feet upstream of the mouth: Open the ~~((first Saturday in June))~~ the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

~~((155))~~ (152) Rue Creek, including West Fork (Pacific County) (South Fork Willapa tributary):

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

~~((156))~~ (153) Salmon Creek (Grays Harbor County) (North River tributary):

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

~~((157))~~ (154) Salmon Creek (Pacific County) (tributary of Naselle River):

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through the last day in February.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Release all fish except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.

~~((158))~~ (155) Salmon River (Jefferson County), outside Olympic National Park and the Quinault Indian Reservation:

(a) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(b) It is unlawful to use anything other than one barbless hook.

(c) Release wild (unclipped) rainbow trout.

(d) Open the first Saturday in June through September 30 and December 1 through the last day in February:

(i) It is unlawful to use bait the first Saturday in June through August 31.

~~(ii) ((Release wild (unclipped) rainbow trout.~~

~~(iii))~~ Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

~~((iv))~~ (iii) It is permissible to retain steelhead with a dorsal fin height of less than 2 1/8 inches or with an adipose or ventral fin clip.

~~((d))~~ (iv) Salmon ((season)): Open September 1 through September 30:

~~((i))~~ (A) Limit ((2)) 6; only ((one)) 2 may be adults and only one of the adults may be a Chinook.

~~((ii))~~ (B) Release wild coho.

~~((159))~~ (156) Salt Creek (Clallam County): From the mouth to the bridge on Highway 112:

(a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.

(b) Open the first Saturday in June through January 31.

(c) Selective gear rules apply.

(d) First Saturday in June through October 31: Catch and release only, except mandatory retention of hatchery steelhead.

(e) November 1 through January 31: Anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.

~~((160))~~ (157) Sand Creek (Grays Harbor County) (Chehalis River tributary):

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

~~((161))~~ (158) Sandysore Lake (Jefferson County): Open the fourth Saturday in April through October 31.

~~((162))~~ (159) Satsop Lakes (Grays Harbor County): Open the fourth Saturday in April through October 31.

~~((163))~~ (160) Satsop River and East Fork (Grays Harbor County):

(a) From the mouth to the bridge at Schafer State Park:

(i) August 16 through November 30:

(A) Night closure in effect.

(B) Single-point barbless hooks are required.

(ii) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31: Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(iii) Salmon open ~~((September 16))~~ October 1 through ~~((December))~~ January 31:

(A) From October 1 through December 31:

(I) Limit 6; only ((one)) two adults may be retained.

~~((B))~~ (II) Only one wild coho may be retained.

(III) Release ((wild adult)) Chinook((, and wild coho)).

(B) From January 1 through January 31.

(I) Limit 6; only two adults may be retained.

(II) Release Chinook and wild coho.

(b) From the bridge at Schafer State Park upstream to 400 feet below Bingham Creek Hatchery barrier dam:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31: Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(ii) Open August 16 through October 31:

(A) Night closure in effect.

(B) Single-point barbless hooks are required.

(c) From 400 feet downstream of the Bingham Creek Hatchery barrier dam upstream to the dam:

(i) Open within posted markers to anglers with disabilities who permanently use a wheelchair and possess a designated harvester companion card.

(ii) Night closure in effect.

(iii) From August 16 through October 31: Single-point barbless hooks are required.

(iv) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31: Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(v) Salmon open (~~((September 16))~~) October 1 through (~~((December))~~) January 31:

(A) From October 1 through December 31:

(I) Limit 6; only ~~((one))~~ two adults may be retained.

~~((B))~~ (II) Only one wild coho may be retained.

(III) Release ~~((wild adult))~~ Chinook ~~((and wild coho))~~.

(B) From January 1 through January 31.

(I) Limit 6; only two adults may be retained.

(II) Release Chinook and wild coho.

(d) From the Bingham Creek Hatchery dam upstream:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(ii) Selective gear rules apply.

(iii) August 16 through October 31: Night closure in effect.

~~((164))~~ **(161) Satsop River, Middle Fork (Turnow Branch):**

(a) From the mouth to Cougar Smith Road:

(i) From August 16 through November 30:

(A) Anti-snagging rule applies.

(B) Night closure in effect.

(ii) Open the first Saturday in June through the last day in February: Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(b) From Cougar Smith Road upstream:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(ii) Selective gear rules apply.

(iii) August 16 through October 31:

(A) Night closure in effect.

(B) Anti-snagging rule applies.

~~((165))~~ **(162) Satsop River, West Fork:**

(a) From the mouth to Cougar Smith Road:

(i) August 16 through November 30:

(A) Anti-snagging rule applies.

(B) Night closure in effect.

(ii) Open the first Saturday in June through the last day in February: Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(b) From Cougar Smith Road to USFS 2260 Road Bridge at Spoon Creek:

- (i) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
- (ii) Selective gear rules apply.
- (iii) August 16 through October 31: Night closure in effect.

(c) From USFS 2260 Road Bridge at Spoon Creek upstream:

- (i) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
- (ii) Selective gear rules apply.
- (iii) Eastern brook trout: No limit; no minimum size. Eastern brook trout do not count toward the trout limit. However, once the limit of trout other than eastern brook trout is reached, the limit for all species of trout is reached and the angler must cease fishing.

~~((166))~~ (163) **Schafer Creek (Grays Harbor County) (Wynoochee River tributary):**

- (a) From the mouth to USFS 22 Road:
- (b) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
- (c) Selective gear rules apply.

~~((167))~~ (164) **Sekiu River (Clallam County):**

(a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.

(b) From the mouth to the forks:

- (i) Open the first Saturday in June through January 31.
- (ii) From the first Saturday in June through October 31: Selective gear rules apply.
- (iii) November 1 through January 31: Catch and release only, except mandatory retention of hatchery steelhead.

(iv) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches.

(c) From the forks upstream:

- (i) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
- (ii) Selective gear rules apply.
- (iii) Catch and release only, except mandatory hatchery steelhead retention applies.

~~((168))~~ (165) **Shine Creek (Jefferson County):**

- (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
- (b) Selective gear rules apply.
- (c) Catch and release only.

~~((169))~~ (166) **Shye Lake (Grays Harbor County):** Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

~~((170))~~ (167) **Siebert Creek (Clallam County):**

- (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
- (b) Selective gear rules apply.
- (c) Catch and release only.

~~((171))~~ (168) **Silent Lake (Jefferson County):**

- (a) Open the fourth Saturday in April through October 31.
- (b) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

~~((172))~~ (169) **Sitkum River (Clallam County) (Calawah River tributary):**

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through ~~((August))~~ October 31.

(b) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(c) It is unlawful to use anything other than one barbless hook.

(d) Release wild (unclipped) rainbow trout.

(e) It is unlawful to use bait.

(f) Trout: (~~((+i))~~) Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

~~((+ii) Release wild (unclipped) rainbow trout.~~

~~(+173))~~ (170) Siwash Creek (Clallam County), outside of Olympic

National Park:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 15.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Trout:

(i) Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(ii) Release kokanee.

~~((+174))~~ (171) Skookumchuck River (Thurston County):

(a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.

(b) From the mouth to 100 feet below the outlet of the TransAlta/WDFW steelhead rearing pond located at the base of the Skookumchuck Dam:

(i) August 16 through November 30:

(A) Night closure in effect.

(B) Single-point barbless hooks are required.

(ii) Open the first Saturday in June through April 30:

(A) From the first Saturday in June through March 31, trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(B) From April 1 through April 30: Trout minimum length 14 inches.

(iii) Salmon open October (~~(+)~~) 16 through December 31:

(A) Limit 6; only (~~(one))~~ two adults may be retained.

(B) Only one wild coho may be retained.

(C) Release Chinook(~~(, wild coho,))~~ and chum.

(c) From Skookumchuck Reservoir upstream, selective gear rules apply.

~~((+175))~~ (172) Smith Creek (near North River) (Pacific County):

(a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.

(b) From the mouth to the Highway 101 Bridge:

(i) August 16 through November 30:

(A) Night closure in effect.

(B) Single-point barbless hooks are required.

(ii) Open the first Saturday in June through the last day in February: Release all fish except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.

(iii) Salmon open October 1 through December 31:

(A) Limit 6; only 3 adults may be retained.

(B) Release wild Chinook.

(c) From the Highway 101 Bridge upstream:

(i) Selective gear rules apply.

(ii) Open the first Saturday in June through the last day in February: Release all fish except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.

~~((+176))~~ (173) Smith Creek (Pacific County) (Chehalis River tributary):

(a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.

(b) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(c) Selective gear rules apply.

~~((177))~~ **(174) Snahapish River (Jefferson County) (Clearwater River tributary):**

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through ~~((August 31))~~ September 30.

(b) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(c) It is unlawful to use anything other than one barbless hook.

(d) It is unlawful to use bait.

~~((Trout:~~

~~(i))~~ Release wild (unclipped) rainbow trout.

~~(f) Trout:~~ Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

~~((ii) Release wild (unclipped) rainbow trout.~~

~~(178))~~ **(175) Sol Duc River (Clallam County):**

(a) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(b) It is unlawful to use anything other than one barbless hook.

(c) Release wild (unclipped) rainbow trout.

~~(d) ((From the mouth to the concrete pump station at the Sol Duc Hatchery: Open July 1 through September 30 and November 16 through June 30.))~~ Open July 1 through June 30.

~~(e) From the mouth to the concrete pump station at the Sol Duc Hatchery:~~

(i) It is unlawful to use bait July 1 through ~~((September 30))~~ August 31 and February 16 through April 30.

(ii) Trout:

(A) May 1 through the Friday before the first Saturday in June: Release all fish except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.

~~((iii) From the first Saturday in June through September 30 and November 16 through April 30:~~

~~(A))~~ (B) The first Saturday in June through ~~((September 30 and November 16 through))~~ March 31: ~~((Trout))~~ Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

~~((B))~~ (C) April 1 through April 30: ~~((Trout))~~ Minimum length 14 inches.

~~((C) November 16 through the last day in February: Anglers may retain one additional hatchery steelhead as part of the trout limit.~~

~~(iv))~~ (iii) Salmon: Open February 1 through ((September 30 and November 16 through)) November 30:

(A) From February 1 through August 31:

(I) Limit 6; only 2 adults may be retained.

(II) Release wild adult Chinook and wild adult coho.

(B) From September 1 through ~~((September 30 and November 16 through))~~ November 30: Limit ~~((2))~~ 6; only ~~((one))~~ 3 may be ~~((a wild))~~ adults and only one adult may be wild. ~~((Release wild coho.~~

~~(e))~~ (f) From the concrete pump station at Sol Duc Hatchery to the Highway 101 Bridge upstream of Klahowya Campground:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through ~~((August 31 and December 1 through))~~ April 30.

(ii) It is unlawful to use bait.

(iii) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

~~((f))~~ (g) From the Highway 101 Bridge upstream of Klahowya Campground to the Olympic National Park boundary:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through ~~((August))~~ October 31.

(ii) Release all fish, except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.

(iii) It is unlawful to use bait.

~~((179))~~ (176) **Solberg Creek (Clallam County) (Big River tributary):**

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 15.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Trout:

(i) Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(ii) Release kokanee.

~~((180))~~ (177) **Solleks River (Jefferson County) (Clearwater River tributary):**

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through ~~((August-31))~~ September 30.

(b) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(c) It is unlawful to use anything other than one barbless hook.

(d) It is unlawful to use bait.

~~((Trout*))~~ Release wild (unclipped) rainbow trout.

~~((i))~~ (f) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

~~((ii) Release wild (unclipped) rainbow trout.~~

~~(181))~~ (178) **Sooes River (Tsoo-Yess River) (Clallam County), outside of Makah Indian Reservation:**

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through the last day in February.

(b) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.

~~((b) Open the first Saturday in June through the last day in February.))~~

(c) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(d) From the first Saturday in June through October 31: ((i)) Selective gear rules apply.

~~((ii) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.~~

~~(d) Open November 1 through the last day in February: Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.~~

~~(182))~~ (179) **South Bend Mill Pond (Pacific County):** Open to juvenile anglers only.

~~((183))~~ (180) **South Creek (Clallam County), outside of Olympic National Park:**

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 15.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Trout:

(i) Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(ii) Release kokanee.

~~((184))~~ (181) South Nemah River (Pacific County):

(a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.

(b) From the mouth (Lynn Point, 117 degrees true to opposite shore) to the confluence with Middle Nemah River:

(i) September 1 through November 30:

(A) Night closure in effect.

(B) Single-point barbless hooks are required.

(ii) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31: Release all fish except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.

(iii) Salmon:

(A) Open September 1 through January 31.

(B) Limit 6; only 4 adults may be retained.

(C) Release wild Chinook.

(c) From the confluence with the Middle Nemah River upstream to the second Highway 101 Bridge crossing:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31.

(ii) Selective gear rules apply.

(iii) Release all fish except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.

~~((185))~~ (182) Stearns Creek (Lewis County) (Chehalis River tributary):

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(183) Stevens Creek (Grays Harbor County):

(a) From the mouth to the Highway 101 Bridge:

(i) Closed from the WDFW hatchery outlet downstream 400 feet.

(ii) Open the first Saturday in June through September 30 and December 1 through the last day in February.

(iii) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(b) From the Highway 101 Bridge upstream to the Newbury Creek Road Bridge:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(ii) Selective gear rules apply.

(184) Stillman Creek (Lewis County) (Chehalis River tributary):

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 from the mouth to water supply pipeline at Mill Creek.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(185) Stowe Creek (Lewis County) (Chehalis River tributary):

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(186) Sutherland Lake (Clallam County):

(a) Open the fourth Saturday in April through October 31.

(b) Trout: Minimum length 6 inches and maximum length 18 inches.

(187) Sylvia Creek (Grays Harbor County) (Wynoochee River tributary):

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

- (188) **Sylvia Lake (Grays Harbor County):** It is unlawful to retain more than 2 trout over 15 inches in length.
- (189) **Tarboo Creek (Jefferson County):**
- (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
 - (b) Selective gear rules apply.
 - (c) Catch and release only.
- (190) **Tarboo Lake (Jefferson County):**
- (a) Open the fourth Saturday in April through October 31.
 - (b) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.
- (191) **Teal Lake (Jefferson County):**
- (a) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.
 - (b) Selective gear rules apply.
 - (c) Trout: Limit one.
- (192) **Thorndyke Creek (Jefferson County):**
- (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.
 - (b) Selective gear rules apply.
 - (c) Catch and release only.
- (193) **Thunder Creek (Clallam County) (Tributary to East Fork Dickey River):**
- (a) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.
 - (b) It is unlawful to use anything other than one barbless hook.
 - (c) It is unlawful to use bait.
 - (d) ~~((Trout:))~~
 - ~~(i))~~ Release wild (unclipped) rainbow trout.
 - (e) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.
 - ~~((ii) Release wild (unclipped) rainbow trout.~~
 - ~~(f))~~ (f) From mouth to D2400 Road: ~~((Game fish season))~~ Open the first Saturday in June through ~~((August 31 and December 1 through))~~ April 30.
 - ~~((f))~~ (g) From D2400 Road upstream: Open the first Saturday in June through ~~((August))~~ October 31.
- (194) **Trap Creek (Pacific County) (Willapa River tributary):**
- (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 15.
 - (b) Selective gear rules apply.
- (195) **Trout Creek (Clallam County) (Big River tributary):**
- (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 15.
 - (b) Selective gear rules apply.
 - (c) Trout:
 - (i) Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.
 - (ii) Release kokanee.
- (196) **Twin Lake (Jefferson County):** Open the fourth Saturday in April through October 31.
- (197) **Umbrella Creek (Clallam County), outside Olympic National Park, including tributaries:**
- (a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 15.
 - (b) Selective gear rules apply.
 - (c) Trout:
 - (i) Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(ii) Release kokanee.

(198) **Valley Creek (Clallam County):** Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 to juvenile anglers only.

(199) **Vance Creek (Grays Harbor County) (Chehalis River tributary):**

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(200) **Vance Creek/Elma Ponds (Grays Harbor County), Pond One (Bowers Lake) and Pond Two (Lake Ines):**

(a) Pond One/Bowers Lake is open only to juvenile anglers, seniors, and anglers with a disability who possess a designated harvest-companion card.

(b) Open the fourth Saturday in April through November 30:

(i) Anglers may not retain more than 2 trout over 15 inches in length.

(ii) Landlocked salmon rules apply.

(201) **Van Winkle Creek (Grays Harbor County):**

(a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.

(b) August 16 through November 30:

(i) Night closure in effect.

(ii) Anti-snagging rule applies.

(c) From the mouth to 400 feet below the outlet of Lake Aberdeen Hatchery:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through January 31: Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(ii) Salmon open September 16 through January 31:

(A) From September 16 through December 31:

(I) Limit 6; only ~~(one)~~ two adults may be retained.

~~((B))~~ (II) Only one wild adult coho may be retained.

(III) Release adult Chinook ~~((and wild coho))~~.

(B) From January 1 through January 31.

(I) Limit 6; only two adults may be retained.

(II) Release Chinook and wild coho.

(d) From Lake Aberdeen upstream:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(ii) Selective gear rules apply.

(202) **Vesta Creek and all forks (Grays Harbor County) (North River tributary):**

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(203) **Ward Creek (Pacific County) (Willapa River tributary):**

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(204) **Wentworth Lake (Clallam County):** It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(205) **West Twin River (Clallam County):**

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Catch and release only.

(206) **Wildcat Creek (Grays Harbor County) (Cloquallum Creek tributary):**

(a) Open from the mouth to the confluence of the Middle and East Forks from the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(207) **Wildcat Creek, East Fork (Grays Harbor County) (Cloquallum Creek tributary):**

(a) Open from the mouth to the Highway 108 Bridge (Simpson Avenue, in the town of McCleary) from the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(208) **Willapa River (Pacific County):**

(a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.

(b) From the mouth (city of South Bend boat launch) to the Highway 6 Bridge approximately 2 miles below the mouth of Trap Creek:

(i) From August 1 through November 30:

(A) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device from the second bridge on Camp One Road upstream to the mouth of Mill Creek (approximately 0.5 miles).

(B) Night closure in effect.

(C) Single-point barbless hooks are required.

(D) Stationary gear restriction applies, except from the mouth of the Willapa River to the WDFW access site at the mouth of Ward/Wilson creeks.

(ii) From the City of South Bend boat launch upstream to the second bridge on Camp One Road: Anglers may fish with two poles August 1 through January 31, provided they possess a valid two-pole endorsement.

(iii) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31; release all fish except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.

(iv) Salmon open August 1 through January 31:

(A) Limit 6; only 4 adults may be retained.

(B) Release wild Chinook.

(c) From Highway 6 Bridge to Fork Creek:

(i) From August 16 through November 30:

(A) Night closure in effect.

(B) Single-point barbless hooks are required.

(C) Stationary gear restriction applies.

(ii) Open the first Saturday in June through July 15 and from ~~((August))~~ September 16 through March 31: Release all fish, except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.

(iii) Salmon open August 16 through September 15:

(A) Limit 6; only 2 adults may be retained.

(B) Release wild Chinook.

(iv) Salmon open September 16 through January 31:

(A) Limit 6; only 4 adults may be retained.

(B) Release wild Chinook.

(d) From Fork Creek upstream to the Highway 6 Bridge near the town of Lebam:

(i) From August 16 through October 31:

(A) Night closure in effect.

(B) Single-point barbless hooks are required.

(ii) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31: Release all fish except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.

(iii) Salmon open October 1 through January 31:

(A) Limit 6; only 4 adults may be retained and only two may be wild ~~((adult))~~ coho.

(B) Release wild Chinook.

(e) From the Highway 6 Bridge near the town of Lebam upstream:

(i) From August 16 through October 31:

(A) Night closure in effect.

(B) Single-point barbless hooks are required.

(ii) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31: Release all fish except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.

(209) **Willapa River, South Fork (Pacific County):** (~~From the mouth to the bridge on Pehl Road:~~)

(a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.

(b) From the mouth to the bridge on Pehl Road:

(i) From the falls/fish ladder downstream 400 feet in Section 6, Township 13 North, and Range 8 West: Closed.

~~((e))~~ (ii) Selective gear rules apply from the first Saturday in June through July 31.

~~((d))~~ (iii) From August 1 through November 30:

~~((i))~~ (A) Night closure in effect.

~~((ii))~~ (B) Anti-snagging rule applies.

~~((iii))~~ (C) Barbless hooks are required.

~~((e))~~ (c) Open the first Saturday in June through the last day in February: Release all fish except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.

~~((f))~~ (i) Salmon open August 1 through January 31:

~~((i))~~ (ii) Limit 6; only 3 adults may be retained.

~~((ii))~~ (iii) Release wild Chinook.

~~((g))~~ (d) From Pehl Road upstream:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through the last day in February.

(ii) Release all fish except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.

(210) **Williams Creek (Pacific County) (North Nemah River tributary):**

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 15.

(b) Release all fish except anglers may retain up to two hatchery steelhead.

(211) **Wilson Creek (Pacific County) (Willapa River tributary):**

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(212) **Wilson Creek, North Fork (Pacific County):**

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(213) **Wishkah River (Grays Harbor County):**

(a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.

(b) From August 16 through November 30: Single-point barbless hooks are required.

(c) From the mouth to ~~((West Fork))~~ 200 feet below the weir at the Wishkah Rearing Ponds:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through the last day in February.

(ii) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(iii) Salmon open October 1 through December 31:

(A) Limit 6; only ~~((one))~~ two adults may be retained.

(B) Only one wild adult coho may be retained.

(C) Release Chinook (~~((and wild coho))~~).

~~((d) From the mouth of West Fork to 200 feet below the weir at the Wishkah Rearing Ponds:~~

~~(i))~~ (iv) From 150 feet upstream to 150 feet downstream of the Wishkah adult attraction channel/outfall structure (within the posted fishing boundary): Open only to anglers with disabilities who permanently use a wheelchair and have a designated harvester companion card.

~~((ii) Open the first Saturday in June through the last day in February.~~

~~(iii) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.~~

~~(iv) Salmon open October 1 through December 31:~~

~~(A) Limit 6; only one adult may be retained.~~

~~(B) Release Chinook and wild coho.~~

~~(e))~~ (d) From the weir upstream:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(ii) Selective gear rules apply.

(214) Wishkah River, East and West forks (Grays Harbor County):

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(215) Wynoochee River (Grays Harbor County):

(a) Mandatory hatchery steelhead retention. No catch and release of hatchery steelhead.

(b) From the mouth to the WDFW White Bridge Access Site:

(i) From August 16 through November 30: Single-point barbless hooks are required.

(ii) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31: Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(iii) Salmon open October 1 through ~~((November 30))~~ December 31.

(A) Limit 6; only ~~((one))~~ two adults may be retained.

(B) Only one wild adult coho may be retained.

(C) Release Chinook ((and wild coho)).

(c) From the WDFW White Bridge Access Site to the 7400 line bridge:

(i) From August 16 through November 30: Single-point barbless hooks are required.

(ii) From September 16 through November 30: It is unlawful to use bait.

(iii) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31: Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(d) From the 7400 line bridge to 400 feet below Wynoochee Dam, including the confluence of the reservoir upstream to Wynoochee Falls:

(i) Closed from 400 feet downstream of Wynoochee Dam and from the barrier dam near Grisdale.

(ii) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 and from December 1 through March 31:

(A) From the first Saturday in June through October 31: Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the limit.

(B) From December 1 through March 31:

(I) Selective gear rules apply.

(II) Release all fish, except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.

(e) From Wynoochee Falls upstream:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(ii) Selective gear rules apply.

(iii) Eastern brook trout: No limit. Eastern brook trout do not count toward the trout limit. However, once the limit of trout other than eastern brook trout is reached, the limit for all species of trout is reached and the angler must cease fishing.

(216) Wynoochee Reservoir (Grays Harbor County):

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Trout: Minimum length 12 inches.

(c) Landlocked salmon rules apply.